
Kountze ISD RFP for Construction Manager at Risk – Question Clarification 
 

Question: Can we please confirm that costs associated with payment and performance 
bonds as well as general liability and builder’s risk insurance will be part of the cost of work 
and not to be considered general conditions or a part of the CMAR fee?  
 
Clarification: Please note, the RFP and template contracts use the term “Indirect Costs” 
instead of “general conditions”.  Indirect Costs are all the allowable costs described in 
section 7.2 (and its subsections, except for 7.2.1.1 for self-performed work), section 7.5 
(and its subsections), and section 7.6 (and its subsections) of the RFP attached template 
A133. 

  

Question: Can we please confirm that an itemized breakdown of the general conditions as 
requested in “11.2 General Conditions” of the RFP is required since the appendix B 
proposal form only has a spot for percentages?  
 

Clarification: Yes, please provide this breakdown.  Be sure this breakdown is consistent 
with the contract templates and definitions included in the RFQ (which refer to the term 
“Indirect Cost” instead of “General Conditions”).  Your breakdown should include all costs 
indicated in the definition of Indirect Costs. 
 

Question: Per section 7.6.3 fees associated with building permits are to be included in the 
Indirect Costs fee for the CMAR. We obtained the building permit fees from the City of 
Liberty but they are based off of building square footage. Can we confirm what the 
anticipated square footage of the new Elementary School will be so that we can accurately 
figure the building permit cost? 

Clarification: ±58,274 SF 

 

Question: Section 7.6.4 states that fees for laboratories for tests required by the contract 
documents are to be paid by the Construction Manager. Does this apply to materials 
testing such as soils testing, concrete testing, weld testing, etc.? Typically these items are 
procured by the Owner once the project scope/documents are finalized. Will material 
testing need to be included in the Indirect Costs? 

Clarification: Costs under Subsection 7.6.4 should not be included at this stage. 



 

Question: Per the response (to a previous question) it seems like the bonds and insurance 
costs are to be part of the project “indirect costs” as they are in section 7.6.1. Can we 
confirm that the intent is for the costs of items 3, 4 & 5 of the Appendix B proposal form to 
be identified separately as shown on the form and also included in item 6 of the proposal 
form as they are part of the project indirect costs? 

Clarification: Items 3, 4, and 5 should be identified separately as shown on the form and 
also included in item 6 of the proposal form as they are part of Indirect Costs. 

 

Question: On the fee proposal form, there’s a section for Addendum #001 - has this been 
issued? 

Clarification: There is currently not an Addendum #001 published. Per the Selection 
Schedule, it will be issued on June 16 and include responses to questions we've received. 
These questions and responses are also being updated to the District's Bond website. 

 

Question:  Can you please tell me if there is a third-party Program Manager working as an 
owner's rep involved, and who, if so? 

Clarification: There is not. 

 
 

https://kountzeisdbond.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/06/Kountze-ISD-RFP-for-Construction-Manager-at-Risk.pdf

